ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 17, 2005
8:04 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Representative JimElKkins
Representative Bob Lynn
Representative Jay Ranras
Representative Berta Gardner
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 36
"An Act relating to applications requesting the delivery of
absentee ballots by mail."

- MOVED HCS CSSB 36( STA) QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BILL NO 178
"An Act relating to special notor vehicle registration plates;
and providing for an effective date.”

- MOVED CSHB 178(STA) OUT OF COWM TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 12
"An Act relating to televisions and nonitors in notor vehicles."

- MOVED CSHB 12( STA) OUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BILL NO 34
"An Act relating to the expungenent of records relating to
conviction set asides granted after suspended inposition of
sentence. "

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 186

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 17, 2005



"An Act

di vi dend,

relating

publ i ¢ assi st ance;

to quarterly paynents of a permanent fund
and to a permanent fund dividend and eligibility for
and providing for an effective date.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 36

SHORT TI TLE: ABSENTEE BALLOTS

SPONSOR( s) :

01/ 11/ 05
01/ 11/ 05
01/ 11/ 05
01/ 20/ 05
01/ 20/ 05
01/ 20/ 05
02/ 01/ 05
02/ 01/ 05
02/ 01/ 05
02/ 02/ 05

02/ 02/ 05
02/ 02/ 05
02/ 08/ 05
02/ 08/ 05
02/ 08/ 05
02/ 10/ 05

02/ 10/ 05
02/ 10/ 05
03/ 02/ 05
03/ 02/ 05
03/ 03/ 05
03/ 03/ 05
03/ 15/ 05
03/ 15/ 05
03/ 15/ 05
03/ 17/ 05

BILL: HB 178

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

SENATOR(s) THERRI AULT

PREFI LE RELEASED 1/07/05

READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

STA, JUD

STA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

Heard & Held

M NUTE( STA)

STA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

Moved CSSB 36(STA) Qut of Committee

M NUTE( STA)

STA RPT CS 3DP 1NR
NEW TI TLE

DP: THERRI AULT, WAGONER, HUGG NS

NR: ELTON

JUD AT 8: 30 AM BUTROVI CH 205

Moved CSSB 36(JUD) Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( JUD)

JUD RPT CS 3DP INR
NEW Tl TLE

DP: SEEKI NS, THERRI AULT, HUGGE NS

NR:  FRENCH

TRANSM TTED TO (H)

VERSI ON:  CSSB 36(JUD)

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

STA, JUD

STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( STA)

STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

SHORT TI TLE: SPECI AL REQUEST LI CENSE PLATES

SPONSOR( s) :

02/ 25/ 05
02/ 25/ 05

HOUSE STA COW TTEE

(H
(H

REPRESENTATI VE(s) OLSON

READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
STA, FIN

- 2- March 17, 2005



03/ 17/ 05 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 12
SHORT TITLE: TVS AND MONI TORS I N MOTCOR VEHI CLES
SPONSCR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) GRUENBERG, LYNN, GARDNER, MCGUI RE

01/ 10/ 05 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 12/ 30/ 04

01/ 10/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 10/ 05 (H) STA, JUD, FIN

03/ 01/ 05 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 01/ 05 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 05/ 05 (H STA AT 9: 30 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 05/ 05 (H Heard & Held

03/ 05/ 05 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/ 17/ 05 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL:. HB 34

SHORT TITLE: EXPUNGEMENT OF SET ASI DES
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) WEYHRAUCH

01/ 10/ 05 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 12/ 30/ 04

01/ 10/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 10/ 05 (H STA, JUD

03/ 01/ 05 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 01/ 05 (H Bi || Post poned

03/ 17/ 05 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

DAVI D STANCLI FF, Staff

to Senator Gene Therriault

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented SB 36 on behalf of Senator
Therriault, sponsor.

LAURA GLAI SER, Director

Di vi sion of Elections

O fice of the Lieutenant Governor

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regardi ng SB 36.

KONRAD JACKSQN, St aff

to Representative Kurt O son
Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 17, 2005



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Introduced HB 178 on Dbehalf of
Representative O son, sponsor.

DUANE BANNCCK, Director

Di vision of Mtor Vehicles (DW)

Al aska Departnment of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions regarding HB 178.

DOUGLAS JOHNSQN, Senior Director,
Technol ogy Policy

Consuner El ectronics Association (CEA)
(Address not provided)

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comented on HB 12.

REPRESENTATI VE BRUCE WEYHRAUCH

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 34 as sponsor.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR PAUL SEATON called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:04:14 AM Present at the call
to order were Representatives Gatto, Elkins, Lynn, Ranras,
Gardner, Guenberg, and Seat on.

SB 36- ABSENTEE BALLOTS

8:07:19 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the first order of business was CS
FOR SENATE BILL NO 36(JUD), "An Act relating to absentee
ballots."

CHAI R SEATON said there had been questions raised at the prior
hearing of SB 36, regarding the direct subm ssion  of
applications to the Division of Elections, and what that neans.

8:.08: 24 AM
CHAI R SEATON directed attention to a legislative intent letter
[included in the commttee packet], which read as follows

[original punctuation provided]:

The legislature understands and intends that the
requirenent to "submt the application directly to the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 17, 2005



division of elections" neans that no internediary
organi zation will control the applications which could
cause delay in their submission to the Division nor
are the ballots available for data mning by

i ndi vidual s or other organizations. The | anguage of
"direct return” is not nmeant to prevent deposit into
the US mail, Fed Ex, or other expedited delivery

systemby a friend, relative or others.

CHAI R SEATON said the legislative intent letter could be done
conceptual ly, because there nmay be typographical errors. He
asked if the intent letter is acceptable to the sponsor.

8:09:32 AM

DAVI D STANCLI FF, Staff to Senator Cene Therriault, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, speaking on behalf of Senator Therriault, sponsor

i ndi cated support of the language [in the legislative intent
letter].

8:10: 28 AM

LAURA GLAISER, Director, Dyvision of Elections, Ofice of the
Li eutenant CGovernor, said [the language in the |legislative
intent letter] is perfect and hel pful. It makes it clear how
the legislature would I|like the division to deal wth the
absent ee by-nmail ball ots.

8:11: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO directed attention to the third line of the
| egislative intent letter and the phrase, "which could cause
del ay". He enphasized the word "could". He said what the
| egislature is really trying to prevent is data m ning.

M5. G.AISER agreed that there is a concern regarding data
mning. She stated that the additional concern is in regard to
organi zations that had, in order to mne the data, caused a
significant delay. She explained as follows:

W had absentee, by-nmail applications that were signed
by an individual, that were driven by a particular
party, and those were turned into our division alnost
a nonth after the voter signed them So, that's what
we're trying to prevent; that caused significant del ay
in delivery of the ballot.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 17, 2005



And that's what ... breaks our hearts; that's what
made us work ... 24 hours, for weeks on end, to try
and get those processed. So, ... that cause delay is

equally inportant to the division - and | think to
everybody who's concerned about a voter's right to

receive a ballot - as the data mning, which
interferes with their confidentiality. So, | think
they both have equal weight of inportance to the
di vi si on.

8:13:39 AM

CHAIR SEATON indicated the following anmendnents to the
| egislative intent letter:

On the third line of the letter:
Bet ween "applications” and "which”
Insert "in a nanner"

On the fourth line of the letter:
Bet ween "nor" and "the ballots”
Del ete "are"

| nsert "woul d"

8:14:14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said he would I|like to see "this
| anguage or the conceptual anmendnent be put in as a legislative
intent section.” He clarified that he would like it to be
Section 1 of the bill.

8:14: 46 AM

CHAI R SEATON said he doesn't think that "this is going to be
m sread,” but he asked if the sponsor would prefer that the

| anguage in the legislative intent be included as a section of
the bill.

8:15: 25 AM
MR. STANCLI FF opined that the issue is whether or not "we" trust

the directors of the Division of El ections to have the
discretion to decide what is worth investigating and what is

not . He said, "This is certainly preferable than trying to
dictate to themin the body of the bill exactly what they should
do."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 17, 2005



8:16: 15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO directed attention to the |ast sentence,
whi ch read:

The |anguage of "direct return” is not neant to
prevent deposit into the US mail, Fed Ex, or other
expedited delivery system by a friend, relative or
ot hers.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO indicated that he has been considering an

amendnent [that would insert on page 1, line 13, follow ng
"elections."]: "In this subsection, "directly" neans in person
by electronic transmssion, by nmail, or by other conmobn
carrier." He said, "It's a way of phrasing it in the
affirmative to say exactly what you nean, rather than what you
didn't mean.” He said he would like to substitute one sentence

f or anot her.
8:17:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO, in response to renmarks by Chair Seaton and
Representative Guenberg, explained that he had originally
intended for the sentence to be added in the text of the bill;
however, he said after speaking previously to Ms. {aiser, he
thinks it could be added within the |anguage of the legislative
intent letter.

8:18: 36 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if anyone has a problem wth exchanging [the
| ast sentence of the legislative intent letter] for the sentence
suggested by Representative Gatto, [text provided previously].

8:19: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG said the | anguage  proposed by
Representative Gatto would "narrow this a little further.™ He
expl ained, "The way it could have been read was that the voter
had to hand carry it to the director; and what the Gatto

| anguage neans is you can put it in the mil." He said he
thinks that it's obviously the intent of the bill to "allow you
to put it inthe mail." He said he prefers [the |anguage at the
end of the legislative intent letter], which would broaden the
bill to nmean "you don't have to do it yourself, but you can give
it to a friend to put it in the mil." He indicated that he

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 17, 2005



hopes the commttee would not adopt Representative @Gtto's
anendi ng | anguage.

8:21:19 AM

CHAI R SEATON said, "... Since we've got this as a new Section 1
as intent, ... | think it's pretty clear, as we're just
intending that it doesn't restrict you from using a friend or
relative. So, |I'd prefer leaving the |anguage the way we have
it inthe ... legislative intent."

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked, "Does that go in Section 1?"

CHAI R SEATON answered, "No, it will be a new section ahead of

Section 1; it'll be legislative intent, and it'll be right in
the bill." He asked Representative Gatto, "You didn't nake an
anendnent; we were just tal king about it, right?"

8:21.:46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO replied, "I didn't, right. This was just a
t hought . | didn't really plan on submitting it as an anendnent

unl ess not hing el se had happened. "

8:22:04 AM

CHAI R SEATON stated, "I would nove to include this |legislative
intent in the bill, as Section 1 in the bill."

8:.22:18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO [objected]. He said "Fed Ex" is a specific
conpany. He said that group, plus UPS, for exanple, "nust fal
under a nane." He explained that he didn't want to nention one
conpany and excl ude anot her.

8:22:47 AM

CHAI R SEATON said he would consider it a friendly anmendnent to
delete "Fed Ex" and "other" [from the legislative intent
letter]. In response to a question from Representative Gatto,
he said he thinks the word "expedited" is necessary, because "we
don't want it to be a slow delivery through sonepl ace el se.”

8:23: 37 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 17, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked what the phrase neant that includes
the words "expedited" and "by a friend, relative or others".

8:23: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered hi s under st andi ng t hat
Representative Gardner is referring to the nodifier of the
sentence. He suggested that the sentence should read:

The I|anguage of "direct return”™ is not neant to
prevent deposit by a friend, relative or others into
the US mail .

8:24:23 AM

CHAI R SEATON said that would be fine.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO suggested changing the word "other" to
"simlar".

8:25: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER sai d, "Wat about 'designated person' ?"

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said, "I'll renpve ny objection.”

8:25:28 AM

CHAIR SEATON asked if there was any further objection to
adopting the Conceptual Legislative Intent | anguage [as
anended] . In response to Representative Gardner, he clarified

that the last sentence of the legislative intent letter now
read:

The I|anguage of "direct return”™ is not neant to
prevent deposit by a friend, relative or others into
the US mail, or expedited delivery system

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG i nterjected, "or an expedited".
CHAI R SEATON responded, "Yeah, that's fine."

8:25:58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG r equested renoving "The | anguage of"

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO responded, "That's a good idea."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 17, 2005



8:26:17 AM

CHAI R SEATON, wupon hearing no objections, announced that [the
| egislative intent letter] was adopt ed.

8:26: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noved to report CSSB 36(JUD), as anended,
out of commttee wth individual recommendations and the
acconpanyi ng fiscal note. There being no objections HCS CSSB
36(STA) was reported out of the House State Affairs Standing
Committee.

HB 178- SPECI AL REQUEST LI CENSE PLATES

8:27:38 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 178, "An Act relating to special notor vehicle
regi stration plates; and providing for an effective date."

8:.27:39 AM

KONRAD JACKSON, Staff to Representative Kurt O son, Alaska State
Legislature, introduced HB 178 on behalf of Representative
A son, sponsor. He explained that if HB 178 were to pass, "al
registration plates will be available for use on all notor
vehicl es. " Currently, passenger vehi cl es, not orcycl es,
noncomrer ci al vans, pickup trucks, and notor honmes are the only
vehicles allowed to display "nonstandard |icense plates or

regi stration plates."
8:.29:15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS asked how he could put a regular-sized
vanity plate on a notorcycle.

MR. JACKSON replied, "It would not actually be the same size
| icense plate. It would be a notorcycle-sized plate wth the
customlettering.”

8:29:59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if state vehicles would be included
under the bill

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- March 17, 2005



MR JACKSON deferred to the director of the Division of NMbtor
Vehi cl es.

8:31: 26 AM

DUANE BANNOCK, Director, Dvision of Mtor Vehicles (DW),
Al aska Departnment of Admnistration, replied that the State of
Al aska could choose to put a personalized |license plate on one
of its vehicles and pay the extra fee.

8:32: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO pointed out that on page 6, lines 10-11
the bill refers to "a vehicle owned by the state" and "a vehicle
owned by an elected state official." He asked if perhaps the

| anguage should include vehicles owned by a nmunicipality or
ot her governnent entity.

MR. BANNOCK responded that there are other sections of the bil
that deal with |ocal governnents. He said:

This bill is not about vehicle registration or the fee
that soneone does or does not pay for vehicle
regi stration. This bill is about the piece of netal

that goes on the vehicle that is the subject of
vehicle registration, regardless of what the cost of
the registration is.

8:34: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER stated that wunder the current 1|icense
pl ate system a person can identify vehicles that are owned by
the governnent by the nunber. She asked if that would still be
true if HB 178 passed.

MR, JACKSON said there would not be a change to that. He said
that he didn't foresee any instance where the state would
"change that registration.”

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER comrented that the bill |anguage |eaves
the option open. She opined, "There's a value in citizens being
able to tell which vehicles are governnent-owned because they
want to watch and see if [the vehicles] are used appropriately.”

CHAIR SEATON stated, "As | wunderstand it, this doesn't change
the policy decisions that are nade by any departnent."”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 17, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE RAVRAS expressed, for t he record, hi s
appreciation for the "exenplary service' at the Juneau DW
of fice.

8:36:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG turned to page 6, |line 12, which read,
"the fee required for that vehicle under (b), (c), (h), or (i)
of this section.™ He asked if this Ilanguage would allow
| egislators to get a legislative plate for their notorcycles and
trailers.

MR. BANNCCK r esponded:

There are four key cat egories for vehi cl e
regi stration: [ Subsection (b)] is npbst common,
noncomer ci al regi stration; [ subsection (c)] is
commercial registration, which is a two-year biannua
comercial registration; [ subsection (h)] references
annual comercial registration; and [subsection (i)]
references the permanent trailer registration.

8:40: 19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO conmented that he and Representative
G uenberg have been involved in getting interlocks installed in
vehi cl es under certain circunstances. He asked if there would
be any value in having identification on a license plate of a
vehicl e that has an interlock devise install ed.

MR. BANNCCK repl i ed:

As to whether or not the plate itself should identify
that [there is an interlock device in the vehicle],

that is an excellent debate. It's been discussed
anong others of you in Juneau, and there are sone
maj or hurdles because, in the [DW], our system

records you as an individual for one record, and we
record your autonobile as a separate record that you
just happen to be an owner of. As a result, there is
no direct connection between the al cohol offender and
the vehicle that that alcohol offender owns.

[ That] doesn't nean that it can't be done, it just
nmeans that if we were to go in that direction, | would
be | ooking for sonme additional resources.

8:43:11 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 17, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS commented that his office determ ned there
would be a $12 mllion fiscal note to attach the "scarlet letter
license plate" to a vehicle.

8:43: 55 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked what interlock is.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO explained that it is a Breathalyzer that
won't let an intoxicated person start his/her car. He then
pointed out to M. Bannock, "One cannot help but notice that
sonme of those unmarked police cars have those three letters
"AST', and were soneone to apply for those, | guess that's
prohi bited, as would be "' XXX ."

8:44:. 45 AM
MR. BANNOCK replied:

Regul ati on speaks to that. And while we do have sone
proposed regulation changes that will help us in our
zeal to get nore personalized plates on the road, we
have no intention of allowing a customer to get a
license plate that could be in ... any way, shape, or
form confused with an Al aska State Trooper car or any
ot her governnent exenpt car. For instance, ['XXE
has] a specific inplication, and there are other sets
of criteria that we already utilize. W intend to
continue that policy through regul ation.

8:45: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER pointed out that page 3, line 12 says
that registration plates issued to legislators remain with the
owner of the vehicle only during the termof office. She asked,
"What's the nechani sm by which this is uphel d?"

MR. BANNOCCK responded that he believed that distribution and

recall of those plates is done through the Ofice of Legislative
Affairs in Juneau.

CHAI R SEATON commented that he knows there are a nunber of
pl ates that are signed and auctioned off.

8:47:16 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- March 17, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG commented that as he understood it, an
el ected official can retain the plates once he/she is out of
office, but the plates can't be on the car anynore. He noved to
[adopt an anendnent] which would delete the final sentence on
page 3, lines 11-13.

CHAIR SEATON objected for discussion purposes and suggested
changing the sentence to read, "The registration plates issued
under this subsection may remain on the vehicle only during the
official's termof office.”

8:48: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG wi t hdrew his previous notion, and then
noved to adopt a new Conceptual Amendnment 1:

Page 3, lines 11-12, after "subsection":
Delete "remain with the owner of"
Insert "may remain on"

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS said he thought the current |anguage
al ready says that, and therefore the anendnment was not needed.

CHAI R SEATON said that there seens to be confusion about whether
plates were recalled from legislators at the end of term of

of fice. He comented that the anmendnent would clear up the
conf usi on.
8:51: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKI NS obj ected to Conceptual Amendnent 1.
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER clarified that the anmendnment would neke
it legal for legislators to keep the legislative plates as
souvenirs, but not keep the plates on their vehicles.

REPRESENTATI VE ELKI NS renoved his objection.

[ There being no objection, Conceptual Amendment 1 was adopted. ]

8:52: 15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER pointed out, "I don't |ike the idea of
state officials' license plates being on comrercial vehicles.™
She suggested a conceptual anendnent which would retain the word
"noncomrercial" on page 3, line 9, and take out subsections (c)
and (h) on page 6, line 12. "I just think that it's sort of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 17, 2005



i nappropriate to blend legislative duties and privileges wth
comercial activities,"” she comrent ed.

CHAIR SEATON stated that the bill addressed all vanity plates,
not just those owned by legislators. He asked if Representative
Gardner thought there should be no commercial vanity plates at
all.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER stated that she doesn't think |egislative
pl ates should be on a commercial vehicle.

8:53:32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested del eting the | anguage on page
6, line 12.

CHAI R SEATON asked M. Bannock which sections would need to be
renoved to address Representative Gardner's concerns.

MR. BANNOCK replied that changes would need to be made to page
3, line 9.

8:55: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER poi nted out that [subsection (b)] on page
6, line 12 refers to noncommercial vehicles, and therefore that
should remain in the bill, while (c) and (h) in the sane line

refer to commercial vehicles, and therefore should be renoved
fromthe bill.

8:55:31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if a vehicle would be considered to be
commercial if it had a nmagnetic business sign on it.

MR. BANNOCK replied that Section 4 of the bill only applies to
the legislators, and the DW "doesn't have any heartburn" about
what becones of this section. He continued:

The principle behind the matter is that it is your
director's opinion that there are a lot of vehicles
that should be paying comercial registration fees
t hat , quite frankly, are not paying commerci al
registration fees, and one of the reasons we suspect
that they are not paying conmmercial fees is because of
sone of the laws prohibiting the display of Ilicense
pl ates on those conmercial vehicles.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 17, 2005



MR. BANNCCK explained that if a person were to |ease a car, the
car title and registration would be in the nanme of the financial
services conpany; based on the way the car is registered, it
woul d be considered a comercial vehicle. He stated that the
reason for changes [that would be made by the bill] is that the
cost of the registration is predicated upon how the vehicle is
titled. He continued:

W do not feel that it is appropriate that the |icense
plate rules be predicated upon the price of the
registration, which is why we nade these changes, so
that if you did lease that [car] and you did pay
hi gher commrercial use registration fees, but [if] you
still wanted to put a personalized license plate on
it, you would have that opportunity to do so.

8:59: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER commented, "The distinction is then in
terms of the ownership of the vehicle, not the usage of the
vehi cl e. And my concern is that legislative plates not be on
vehicles that are visibly comercially used."

MR. BANNOCK replied that the DW has devel oped the "three-way
test,” which he explained is a statutorily dictated test that
determ nes what is a conmercial vehicle. He continued:

Step test nunber one: is [the vehicle] registered in
the name of a business or a conpany? Step nunber two:
does it weigh in excess of 10,000 pounds, excluding
not or honmes and buses? Step nunber three: is it used
commercially? And then we go in different sections of
the code of the statute book to determ ne what the
delimtation of "used comercially" is.

MR. BANNOCCK explained that if a vehicle is used for commerci al
pur poses, however rarely, it is still <considered to be a
commer ci al vehicle.

9:01: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if the words on page 3, line 9 should

be changed from "noncommercial” to "not-for-profit passenger
vehi cl e" i nstead.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- March 17, 2005



MR. BANNOCK replied, "I hesitate to answer that because there is
already a statutory provision that defines what comerci al
registration is.” He presented an exanple of a vehicle that is
used seasonally for business purposes, and asked the conmttee
if this vehicle would be included as a "not-for-profit passenger
vehi cl e".

CHAIR SEATON asked the committee nenbers to rethink their
concerns about the |anguage in the bill

9:03:47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked M. Bannock if the fees charged
cover the costs paid for vanity plates.

MR. BANNOCK answered, "Yes, many tines over." In response to
Chair Seaton, he confirmed that the vanity plates provide a net
i ncone to the general fund.

9:04: 38 AM
CHAI R SEATON cl osed public testinony.
9:04:52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked M. Bannock why there is a fisca
note for this bill if the vanity plate program is incone
generati ng.

MR. BANNOCK replied that there is a $5,000 cost in fiscal year
(FY) 06 for changing the progranming in the DW system He
noted, "Under changes in revenues, we have suggested quite a
| arge increase in revenues conpared to the capital expenditure
to pay for the plates thenselves."”

9: 05: 51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN nentioned that there is a bill [being
considered] in the House Special Conmittee on Mlitary and
Veterans' Affairs involving license plates for Purple Heart

reci pi ents.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG proposed an anmendnent on behalf of
hi nsel f and Representative Lynn that would add |anguage to the
bill which would allow recipients of the Purple Heart to receive
the [special license] plate without paying the $30 fee.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 17, 2005



CHAIR SEATON noted that HB 178 does not nodify fees or fee
structures.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked M. Bannock how nmany Purple Heart
license plates there are currently in Al aska.

MR. BANNOCK replied that he didn't have that information at
hand, but he did know that there are a total of 52 special
| icense plates for Purple Heart recipients, Prisoners of War,
and Pear| Harbor survivors.

CHAIR SEATON remarked that if the Purple Heart |icense plates
beconme free, nore people may apply.

9: 09: 40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he offered the amendnent with the
proviso that if Representative dson objected to it, the
anendnent woul d be del et ed.

MR. BANNOCK retracted his previous answer, and stated that he
now had the correct information which showed that in FY 03 there
were a total of 509 Purple Heart |icense plates in Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG clarified that if this nunber was
correct, then his proposed anendnent would equal a $15, 270
reduction [in funds to the state].

9:10: 53 AM

CHAI R SEATON remarked that if the anendnent were to cost the
state about $15,000, then the 2008-9 fiscal note which says that
there would be a [net inconme] of $10,000 would then instead
become a cost of $5,000 to the state.

MR. BANNOCK pointed out that even if there were 509 such plates
today, it doesn't nmean that there were that many issued in a
single year; sone of the plates could have been issued 20 years
ago.

9:11:58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that the text of the anendnent
woul d nodify AS 28.10.421 (d)(2), on page 6, line 1 of the bill

changing the figure "$30" to "none". He remarked that the
anendnent would also nodify AS 28.10.431(h) to add "or a
recipient of a Purple Heart” to nake it clear that the applicant

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 17, 2005



must still pay the registration fee, but is exenpted from the
$30 fee for the plate.

9:13: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGATTO asked if a [legislator] who is also a
contractor is allowed to have a legislator plate on his work
truck.

MR. BANNOCK answered that this m ght be possible. He expl ai ned
that if the contractor had disclosed to the DW that he uses the
truck commercially, he would not be able to put the |egislative
plate on his truck. If he did not disclose to the DW that he
uses the truck for work, the bill would have no effect on him
If the bill were to pass, the contractor who disclosed to the
DW that the truck is used conmercially would now be able to use
| egi sl ative pl ates.

9:14:39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO commented that he was confused by this
answer . He offered his own exanple in which a contractor goes
to a worksite with a legislator's plate on his truck, which
gives the contractor "a bit of an unfair advantage" because

perhaps the client will then view the contractor in a better
l'i ght.
MR. BANNOCK replied that Representative Gatto was correct about
how the bill could be applied. He said, "W have a trenendous
amount of autonobiles in Alaska that neet the definition of
‘commercial' ... but have not been disclosed to the [DW] so we
think that they are noncommercial vehicles."” He continued:

| believe | understand what your concern is. It goes

back to the intent of how the vehicle ... is currently

registered. |If that person that you're describing has

disclosed to the [Dw] that the vehicle is a
commercial use vehicle, under the rules today that
person could not display their legislative plates on
t hat vehicle.

9:17: 39 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO pointed out that wunder current |aw, that
person would be violating the law for failure to disclose; this

| egi slation would sinply give himthe privilege of not violating
t he | aw

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 17, 2005



MR. BANNOCK said, "This change that we're proposing doesn't have
anything to do with that violation because until that violation
is cured, the custoner conmes in, reregisters his vehicle as a
comercial vehicle. That violation is still going on regardless
of what type of plate they're displaying on the vehicle." He
noted that there have been several recent court decisions in
Al aska that backed up this position; that the use of the vehicle
predicates if a vehicle should be required to pay commerci al
regi stration or not.

9:19: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER expressed her concern that it nay not be
appropriate for sonmeone to be visibly doing a comercial
activity with legislative plates on the vehicle.

CHAI R SEATON conmment ed, "Hopefully we will have |egislators that
use their discretion on legislative plates and consider that
within the ethical bounds instead of the statutory bounds.” He
remnded the commttee that Conceptual Anendnent 1 had been
adopt ed.

9:20:52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noved to report HB 178, as anended, out
of comittee W th i ndi vi dual reconmendat i ons and t he
acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB

178(STA) was reported out of the House State Affairs Standing
Commi ttee.

HB 12-TVS AND MONI TORS I N MOTOR VEH CLES

9:21: 40 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 12, "An Act relating to televisions and nonitors in
not or vehicles."

9:22:00 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt the commttee substitute
(CS) to HB 12, Version 24-LS0058\L, Luckhaupt, 3/9/05, as a work
draft. There being no objection, Version L was before the
comm ttee.

9:23:43 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 17, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG revi ewed the changes
the commttee substitute. He said:

i ncorporated into

This attenpted to deal with all the issues that were
raised [at the last commttee neeting] wth the
exception of one that we were not able to solve.
First, on line 5 of page 1, we changed "operation of"

in the title to "driving". ... Secondly, on line 9, we
inserted "laptop type portable conputer” Third, we
added in there the [paragraph] 2, ... which includes

also "devices that are visible to or intended to be
viewed by the driver and that would visually distract
the driver, excluding devices used in the operation of
the vehicle.” ... That dealt with everything we had
raised in the previous hearing of the bill with the
exception of the word "watching”, which Representative
Gatto had asked [us to define], and the intent of that
is watching to the extent that you are distracted,
because you couldn't be totally watching it and
driving, but the point is that you're watching it to

the extent that you' re distracted.

9:25:24 AM

DOUGLAS JOHNSON, Senior Director, Technology Policy, Consuner
El ectroni cs Association (CEA), testified in support of the bill.
He commented that HB 12 "follows very closely with a nodel that

we' ve been supportive of across the country.”
devel oped a nodel bill on the subject of

He noted that CEA
in-vehicle video

di splays, and in 2003 both California and Indiana adopted this
nodel . He noted that CEA had submitted witten coments to the

commttee and he pointed out the key points:

[ Consuner Electronics Association is] |ooking for a
consistent treatnment of this across the country, which
obviously benefits drivers and |aw enforcenent, as

well as the industry. Secondly, we're

flexibility with regard to the bill.
singling out individual technol ogies or

| ooki ng for

If you start
products which

are constantly changing in our industry, then the
| egislation needs to be frequently anended, and so
we're |looking for a nore conprehensive approach that

targets the behavior that's in question

rat her than

item zing specific technol ogies. And thirdly, ... we
want to focus on the problem at hand, which is .
wat chi ng, not dri ving. So we believe that the nodel

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21-

March 17, 2005



approach, which we've been supportive of in other
states, tracks well with the introduced version of HB
12. ..

9:.28: 06 AM

MR. JOHNSON addressed the changes made in Version L. He said:

W don't have any comment about the first change.
That's fine. The nention of |aptop portable conputer,

however, is an exanple of identifying a specific
product or technol ogy. The problem with that, of
course, as | nentioned, is that technology is always
changing and if you start [to] list products, we're
not sure when you'd stop. ... There's a |lot of devices

out there that are portable, that have screens, and we
think it's a better approach to focus nore generically
on the problem

Just a quick comrent on the [tern] "interlock,"
whi ch appears in a couple of different places in the
bill: a couple of states have used that term It's
not in our nodel approach. W favor a nore generic
term called, "device" instead of "interlock"
because of the confusion about what interlock really
nmeans.... That was one specific concern we had there.

The other had to do wth the renoval of "power
provision", which is in [subsection (b)] of the bill.
W would suggest and support "disable” rather than

"renove power". ... W feel that this is redundant
since it's already included in [paragraph] 5 of the
bill, but if it is to be included in [subsection (b)],
we favor the nore generic term "disable". When you

renmove power from sonething, that's kind of hard to
define with a technol ogy product, and sonewhat hard to
do in an engi neering sense.

9: 30: 30 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked M. Johnson if paragraph (5) of the bill
conports with his testinony.

MR. JOHNSON replied affirmatively, "save for the term 'interl ock
device'."

9:31:44 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 17, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Conceptual Anmendnent 1,
as foll ows:

Page 2, line 19, after "has

Delete "an interl ock"
| nsert "a"

REPRESENTATI VE  GATTO objected and noted that the word
"interlock"” appears in several places in the bill

9: 33: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG noved to adopt an anendnment to
Conceptual Amendnent 1:

Page 2, line 6, after "noving."

Delete "An interl ock or other nmechani snf
| nsert "A device"

[ There being no objection, it was so ordered.]

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO suggested that Representative G uenberg
make an additional change to Anmendnent 1, changing the words
"renoves power" on page 2, line 6, and substituting the word,
"di sabl es."

9:34: 26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG npved to adopt a second anendnment to
Conceptual Amendnent 1:

Page 2, lines 6-7, after "that"
Del ete "renoves power from
I nsert "disabl es”
[ There being no objection, it was so ordered.]

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO renoved his objection.

There being no objection, Conceptual Anmendnent 1, as amended,
was adopt ed.

9:35:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Conceptual Anmendnent 2,
as follows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- March 17, 2005



Page 2, line 12, after "a
Del ete "d obal Positioning Systent
I nsert "navigation or global positioning”

There bei ng no objection, Conceptual Anendnent 2 was adopt ed.
9:.36:47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG conmmented that he was not going to
limt [the bill] to "low speed naneuvering,"” although this was
M . Johnson's recommendati on.

MR. JOHNSON responded that he had no objection to |eaving that
out .

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Johnson if any he had any
ot her suggestions that the commttee may have m ssed.

MR. JOHNSON reiterated that CEA would recommend deleting the
reference to "l aptop type portable conputer” on page 1, lines 9-
10.

CHAI R SEATON said that he would like to |eave that |anguage in
the bill.

9:39: 32 AM
CHAI R SEATON cl osed public testinony.
9:39:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO turned attention to the words "laptop type
portabl e conmputer” and conment ed:

A conputer itself is an instrunment that ... has no
real reason to be stared at or |ooked at; the only
thing we're really concerned about is the display.
And so, adding "laptop type portable conputer” without
sonehow connecting it to the screen that is with it -
the conputer itself is not something anyone woul d | ook
at .

CHAI R SEATON noted lines 7-8 on page 1, which say "A person nay

not drive a notor vehicle while watching a". He commented,
"Everybody knows what a laptop is."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 17, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he believes that the screen is

part of the conmputer, so the word "conputer” includes the
screen.
9:41: 20 AM

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN noved to report CSHB 12, \Version 24-
LS0058\ L, Luckhaupt, 3/9/05, as anended, out of commttee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal note.

9:41: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ected for discussion purposes. He
said that he has been in touch with the Al aska Departnent of

Law, and that departnment will deal with this bill when it is in
the House Judiciary Standing Conmittee. He renoved his
obj ecti on.
9:42: 12 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if there was any further objection. There
bei ng none, CSHB 12(STA) noved from House State Affairs Standing
Committee.

HB 34- EXPUNGEMENT OF SET ASI DES

9:42:36 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 34, "An Act relating to the expungenment of records
relating to conviction set asides granted after suspended
i nposition of sentence.”

9:42: 49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BRUCE WEYHRAUCH, Al aska State Legislature, as
sponsor, presented HB 34 to the commttee. He explained that a
court has the option to set aside a conviction following the
defendant's successful conpletion of the conditions of his/her
suspended sentence. However, under current |law, that conviction
will always be on the defendant's record. He commented,
"There's no opportunity for a person to have their record
expunged of a conviction; there's no opportunity to w pe the
slate clean.” He clarified that HB 34 would authorize the
expungenment of a record of a conviction that has been set aside
foll ow ng a suspended i nposition of sentence.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- March 17, 2005



9:48: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH pointed out that some crines are so
heinous that it wouldn't be good public policy to give that
i ndi vidual the opportunity to have an expunged record. But in
sone case, he said, "I think it is appropriate to consider
allowwng an individual to have their record expunged or
cl eaned. "

9:50: 19 AM

CHAI R SEATON commented that the commttee had just received sone
of the bill background information.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH replied that is his intention to get
the bill introduced and he would consider a conmttee substitute
or a sponsor substitute to address the commttee' s concerns.

9: 50: 58 AM

CHAIR SEATON turned to a list in the commttee packet titled,
"Crinmes Excl uded from Set Asi de Options, " and asked
Representative Weyhrauch if these crinmes would not be expunged.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH explained that those <crinmes are
excluded from the set aside option and therefore would not be
able to be expunged. Gving the exanple of a battered woman who
finally kills her abuser, he comented that there may, however,
be sonme instances in which an individual convicted of a crinme on
the list should have his/her record expunged.

9:53:22 AM

CHAIR SEATON asked why 4th Degree Assault and Reckless
Endangernent are omtted fromthe |ist.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH replied that in sone cases, individuals
who conmitted these crinmes should be eligible for expungenent.

9:54: 16 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked why 1st Degree Custodial Interference is on
the list, but 2nd Degree Custodial Interference is omtted.

REPRESENTATI VE VWEYHRAUCH replied, "I'm sinply going off what the

set aside statute allows, and then allow ng those convictions
that can be set aside and a suspended inposition inposed to then

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 17, 2005



be allowed the class of convictions that can be expunged - to
limt it to that. It's already under existing statute...."

9: 55: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked for other exanples of crines to be
avai |l abl e for expungenent.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH replied, "Teenage drinking, snoking
marijuana. A lot of these are youthful offenses that show up on
a person's record forever. Theft, [shoplifting]." He pointed
out that these types of offenses can nmake it difficult for a
person to get into college or a mlitary acadeny, or to get a
j ob. He noted that the only way a record can currently be
expunged is through the President of the United States or the
governor of the State of Alaska for a pardon or executive
cl enency.

CHAI R SEATON suggested that it would be helpful for the
commttee to have nore exanples [of offenses to which this bil
woul d apply] for the next hearing.

9:58: 02 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that HB 34 was heard and hel d.

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at
9:59: 58 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- March 17, 2005



